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APPLE FINANCE LIMITED

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Twenty-Seventh Annual General
Meeting of the members of Apple Finance Limited will be held on
Wednesday, September 25, 2013 at 3.30 p.m. at M. C. Ghia Hall,
Bhogilal Hargovindas Building, Floor 4, 18/20 Kaikhushru Dubash
Marg, Mumbai 400 001 to transact the following business :-

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2013, audited Profit and Loss Account for the year
ended as on that date and the Reports of the Board of Directors
and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Mahendra S. Shah, who
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for
reappointment.

3. Toappoint Messrs MahendraKumbhat & Associates, Chartered
Accountants, the retiring Auditors, as the Auditors of the
Company, and to authorize the Board of Directors to fix their
remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without
modification, as an Ordinary Resolution, the following:

“RESOLVED THAT thereappointment of Mr. Mahesh K. Rachh
as the Managing Director of the Company subject to Sections
198, 269, 309, Schedule X111 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the CompaniesAct, 1956 and al so subject to the approval
of the Central Government, if required, for a period of one year
with effect from August 9, 2013 made by the Board of Directors
(“the Board”) of the Company vide its resolution dated May 30,
2013 and the remuneration payable to Mr. Mahesh K. Rachh
pursuant to the aforesaid resolution and as set out in the
Explanatory Statement annexed to this Notice, be and is hereby
approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Mahesh K. Rachh, Managing
Director shall be liable to retire by rotation.

AND THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution,
the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things as it may in its absolute discretion deem
necessary, expedient and proper.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

P. B. Deshpande
Company Secretary

Registered Office:
8 Apegjay House
130 Mumbai Samachar Marg
Mumbai 400 023

Date: May 30, 2013

NOTES:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting isentitled to
appoint aproxy to attend and, on apoll, to voteinstead of himself.
A proxy need not be amember of the Company.

The proxy form, duly completed and stamped, must reach the
Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before
the time for holding the aforesaid meeting. Proxies submitted
on behalf of limited companies, societies, etc., must be supported
by appropriate resol ution/authority, as applicable.

2. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 173(2) of the
Companies Act, 1956 in respect of Item No.4 as set out above,
is annexed hereto.

3. Members are requested to notify the change, if any, in their
address to the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company at
thefollowing address: Sharepro Services (India) Pvt. Ltd., 13AB
Samhita Warehousing Complex, Floor 2, Sakinaka Telephone
Exchange Lane, Off Andheri-Kurla Road, Sakinaka, Andheri
(East), Mumbai 400 072.

4. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the
Company will remain closed from Thursday, September 19, 2013
to Wednesday, September 25, 2013 (both days inclusive).

5. Members/Proxies should bring the attendance slip sent herewith
duly filled out for attending the meeting.

6. Memberswho hold sharesin dematerialized form are requested
tobringtheir Client ID and DP 1D numbersfor easy identification
of attendance at the meeting.

7. The Company has transferred all the unclaimed amounts of
dividends as well as public deposits and interest thereon to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund (“1EPF") of the Central
Government as required under Sections 205A and 205C of the
CompaniesAct, 1956. No claim shall lie against the |EPF or the
Company for the amounts so transferred nor shall any payment
be made in respect of such claim.

8. Members who hold shares in physical form can nominate a
person in respect of al the shares held by them singly or jointly.
Members who hold shares in single name are advised, in their
owninterest, to avail of the nomination facility by filling Form 2B.
The Company's Registrar and Transfer Agents on request will
supply blank forms. Membershol ding sharesin the dematerialized
form may contact the Depository Participant for recording
nomination in respect of their shares.

9. Shareholders are requested to bring their copy of Annual Report
to the Meeting.

Annexureto the Notice

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 173(2) of the
CompaniesAct, 1956

Item No.4

Asthe current period of appointment of Mr. Mahesh K. Rachh asthe
Managing Director of the Company will expire on August 8, 2013,
the Board of Directors (“the Board”) hasin its meeting held on May
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30, 2013 reappointed Mr. Mahesh K. Rachh asthe Managing Director
of the Company.

The main terms of reappointment, remuneration etc. of Mr. Mahesh
K. Rachh as the Managing Director are as under, which are subject
to the approval of the members of the Company.

Term - 1 (one) year with effect from August 9, 2013, subject to earlier
termination by either the Company or him by three months’ prior
notice.

Salary including perquisites, ex-gratia and other allowances not
exceeding ¥18,00,000 (Rupees eighteen lac only) per annum.

In addition, Mr. Mahesh K. Rachh will be allowed the following
benefits:-

e The Company shall pay annual premium towards personal
accident insurance as per the rules of the Company.

e The Company shall pay fees of clubs as per the rules of the
Company, subject to a maximum of two clubs. This will,
however, not include admission and life membership fee.

Mr. Mahesh K. Rachhwill also be entitled to thefollowing perquisites,
which will not be included in the computation of ceiling on
remuneration specified above:

e Gratuity: Payable as per therules of the Group Gratuity Scheme
of the Company.

¢ Encashment of |eave at the end of the tenure.

The perquisites, wherever applicable, shall be evaluated as per the
Income-tax Rules, 1962.

Mr. Mahesh K. Rachh, so long as he functions as the Managing
Director, shall not be paid any sitting feesfor attending the meetings
of the Board or Committees thereof.

Wherein any financial year during the term of office of Mr. Mahesh
K. Rachh as the Managing Director, the Company has no profits or
its profits are inadeguate, the Board shall be entitled to pay to Mr.
Mahesh K. Rachh such remuneration not exceeding the limits
specified under Section |1 of Part 11 of Schedule XI11 to the Companies
Act, 1956, including any statutory modifications or re-enactment
thereof, for the time being in force.

Except Mr. Mahesh K. Rachh, none of the Directors has any concern
or interest in the aforesaid resolution.

The Board commends the resol ution for acceptance by the members.

Thismay also betreated as an abstract of the terms and conditions of
the benefitsremuneration payable to Mr. Mahesh K. Rachh as the
Managing Director of the Company under Section 302 of the
CompaniesAct, 1956.

By Order of the Board of Directors

P. B. Deshpande
Company Secretary

Registered Office:
8 Apegjay House
130 Mumbai Samachar Marg
Mumbai 400 023

Date: May 30, 2013

©,



APPLE FINANCE LIMITED

DIRECTORS REPORT

Your Directors present their twenty-seventh Annual Report on the
business and operations of your Company and the audited financial
statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2013.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Thefinancial results of your Company for the year ended March 31,
2013 as compared to the previous year are summarized below:-

T lacs

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2013 31.03.2012

Gross Income 150.96 168.75
Profit/(Loss) before Depreciation

And Taxation 10.50 37.52
Less: Depreciation 19.79 20.82
Profit/(Loss) before Taxation (9.29) 16.70
Provision for Taxation 0.04 0.06
Net Profit/(Loss) after Taxation (9.33) 16.64

During the year under review, the Company continued its focus on
recovery of dues. Efforts have been made to control the operational
expenses, wherever possible.

On account of loss, your Directorsregret their inability to recommend
Dividend.

SUBSIDIARY

As per the general exemption granted by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, Government of Indiavide General Circular N0.2/2011 File
N0.5/12/2007-CL-I11 dated February 8, 2011 and as per the consent
accorded by the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting
held on May 30, 2013 for not attaching the Annual Accounts of the
subsidiary company, the Annual Accounts of Apple Asset
Management Limited have not been attached to the Annual Accounts
of the Company. Financial information of the subsidiary company,
asrequired by the aforesaid Circular isdisclosed in the Annua Report.
The Company will make available the Annual Accounts of the
subsidiary company and the related detailed information to any
member of the Company who may be interested in obtaining the
same, on request. The Annual Accounts of the subsidiary company
will also be kept open for inspection by any shareholder of the
Company at the Registered Office of the Company.

The Consolidated Financial Statements presented by the Company
include the financial information of its subsidiary company, Apple
Asset Management Limited.

DIRECTORS

Mr. Mahendra S. Shah retires by rotation and being eligible, offers
himself for reappointment.

A brief resumeof the Director retiring by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting, nature of hisexpertisein specific functional areas,
and the names of companies in which he holds directorship and/or

membership/chairmanship of committees of the Board, as stipul ated
under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with BSE Limited, isgiven
in the section on Corporate Governance annexed to theAnnual Report.

Mr. Mahesh K. Rachh, Director is sought to be reappointed as the
Managing Director.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 217(2AA) of the Companies
Act, 1956, with respect to Directors' Responsibility Statement, it is
hereby confirmed that:-

a) inthe preparation of the accounts for the year ended March 31,
2013, the applicableaccounting standards have been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures.

b) theDirectorshave selected such accounting policies and applied
them consistently and made judgements and estimates that were
reasonable and prudent so asto give atrue and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year
and of theloss of the Company for the year under review.

c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting recordsin accordance with
the provisions of the CompaniesAct, 1956 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities.

d) theDirectorshave prepared the accountsfor theyear ended March
31,2013 ona‘going concern’ basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on Corporate Governance stipulated by Clause 49 of theListing
Agreement is annexed hereto and forms part of thisAnnual Report.

DEPOSITORIES

As the Members are aware, your Company’s shares are tradable
compulsorily in electronic form and your Company has established
connectivity with both the Depositories i.e. National Securities
Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited.

Inview of the numerous advantages offered by the Depository system,
Members are requested to avail of the facility of dematerialization of
the Company’s shares on either of the Depositories as aforesaid.

At present, 72.96% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company
isheld in dematerialized form.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company, during the year under review, has not accepted any
depositsfrom public. The Company had no unclaimed or unpaid deposits
ason March 31, 2013.
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AUDITORS

Messrs Mahendra Kumbhat & Associates, Chartered Accountants,
Auditors of the Company hold office until the conclusion of the ensuing
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, have expressed their
willingnessto continue, if so appointed.

Membersare requested to consider their reappointment asthe Auditors
of the Company and authorize the Board of Directors to fix their
remuneration.

AUDITORS REPORT

Asregards observations of the Auditors under the head *Opinion’ in
the Independent Auditors' Report, attention of the membersisinvited
toNote Nos.19(1) and 19(11) to the Annual Accounts, which are self-
explanatory.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

There are no employeeswithin the purview of Section 217(2A) of the
Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies (Particulars of
Employees) Rules, 1975.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTIONAND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGSAND
OUTGO

Theinformation required under Rule 2 of the Companies (Disclosures
of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988,
relating to conservation of energy and technology absorption, is not
being given since your Company is not engaged in manufacturing
activity.

Therewas no income or outflow of foreign exchange during the year
under review.

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS
The relations with the employees continued to be cordial.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directorswish to expresstheir gratitude to the shareholdersfor
their support. They also wish to acknowledge the spirit of dedication,
commitment and cooperation extended by our employeesat al levels.

For and on behalf of the Board

Mahesh K. Rachh
Managing Director

Mahendra S. Shah
Director

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2013

REPORT ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

(Asrequired under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into
with BSE Limited)

I.  Company’s Philosophy:-

The Company is committed to adopt the best Corporate
Governance practices and endeavors continuously to implement
the Code of Corporate Governance in its true spirit. The
Company’s philosophy in relation to Corporate Governance is
to ensure transparency in all its operations, make disclosures
and enhance shareholders’ value without compromising in any
way in complying with the applicable laws.

The Board of Directors acknowledges that it has a fiduciary
relationship and a corresponding duty towards the stakehol ders
to ensurethat their rights are protected. Through the Governance
mechanism in the Company, the Board al ong with its Committees
endeavorsto strike aright balance with its various stakehol ders.

Il. Board of Directors:-

A. Composition, category of Directors and their other
directorships and committee memberships as on May

30, 2013:-
Name of the Category No. of other  No. of other
Director of Directorship Directorships Committee
held in other Memberships
Companies
Mr. MaheshK.  Managing 4 Nil
Rachh Director
(Executive
Director)
Mr. Mahesh Director 1 Nil
Raghavan Menon (Non-Executive
and Independent
Director)
Mr. Mahendra Director 1 Nil
S. Shah (Non-Executive

and Independent
Director)

The Company does not have adesignated Chairman.

Four meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the
financial year ended March 31, 2013. The dates on which the
Board meetings were held are as follows:-

May 30, 2012, July 18, 2012, November 12, 2012 and February
14, 2013.

The attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings and at the
last Annual General Meeting is given below:

Name of the Board Attendance at the
Director meetings last Annual General
attended Meeting held on

September 25, 2012

Mr. Mahesh 4 Present

K. Rachh

Mr. Mahesh 4 Present

Raghavan Menon

Mr. Mahendra S. Shah 4 Not Present
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APPLE FINANCE LIMITED

B. Remuneration to Directors for the year 2012-2013:-

Name of Salaryand  Contribution to Sitting
Director Allowances Provident Fund Fees

and Superannuation

Fund

® ® )

Mr. Mahesh 16,66,782 2,72,160 Nil
K. Rachh
Mr. Mahesh Nil Nil 6,000
Raghavan Menon
Mr. Mahendra  Nil Nil 6,000
S. Shah

There are no service contracts executed with the Directors
and they have been appointed pursuant to the resolutions
passed at the General Meetings.

C. Information in respect of the Directors seeking
appointment/reappointment at the Annual General
Meeting:-

Mr. Mahendra Shantilal Shah, aged 55, has been the Director
of the Company since June 2007. Mr. Shah is B. A. from
the University of Mumbai and hasover 31 years' experience
in managing business. He does not hold Directorship of any
other company.

I11. Audit Committee:-

TheAudit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company,
inter alia, provides assurance to the Board on the adequacy of
the internal control systems and financial disclosures.

Apart from all the matters provided in Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement and Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956, the
Committee meets Statutory Auditors periodically and discusses
their findings, suggestions, internal control systems, scope of
audit, observations of the Auditors and reviews accounting
policies followed by the Company. The Committee makes
recommendation(s) to the Board on any matter relating to the
financial management of the Company including Statutory Audit
Reports. The Committee also recommends the appointment of
the Statutory Auditors and fixation of their remuneration.

The Committee reviewswith the management the quarterly, half-
yearly and annual financial statements before their submission
to the Board.

TheAudit Committee comprisesthree Directorsviz., Mr. Mahesh
K. Rachh, Mr. Mahesh Raghavan Menon and Mr. Mahendra S.
Shah. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Mahesh
Raghavan Menon. All the Members of the Audit Committee are
financially literate and have relevant financial expertise. The
quorum for the Audit Committee meeting is two members with
at least two independent Directors present at the meeting. No
personnel were denied access to the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee generally meets oncein aquarter to inter
aiareview the quarterly performance and the financial results.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2013, the Audit
Committee met four timesi.e. on May 30, 2012, July 18, 2012,
November 12, 2012 and February 14, 2013.

The attendance of each member at the Audit Committee meetings
is given below:-

V.

Name of the Member Category of Audit Committee
Directorship meetings attended

Mr. Mahesh K. Rachh  Managing Director 4
(Executive Director)

Mr. Mahesh Raghavan Director 4

Menon (Non-Executive and

Independent Director)

Director 4
(Non-Executive and

Independent Director)

Mr. Mahendra S. Shah

Remuneration Committee:-

The Company’s Remuneration Committee comprises
independent and Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Mahesh
Raghavan Menon and Mr. Mahendra S. Shah. The broad terms
of reference are to appraise the performance of the Managing
Director, determine and recommend to the Board, compensation
payableto him, details of which areincluded in thisReport. Mr.
Mahendra S. Shah is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

Payment of remuneration to the Managing Director isas per his
appointment. The terms of his appointment were approved by
the Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors, and the
shareholders. The remuneration structure comprises salary,
perquisites and contributions to provident fund, superannuation
and gratuity.

Theremuneration paid to the Managing Director and Sitting Fees
paid to Non-Executive Directors has been disclosed elsewhere
in this Report.

The aforesaid Committee has met on May 30, 2012 during the
financial year 2012-2013.

Shareholders Committee:-

The Company has duly constituted a Shareholders'/Investors
Grievance Committee, which isheaded by the independent Non-
Executive Director, Mr. Mahendra S. Shah to attend and address
the grievances of the shareholders/investors as and when
received. Mr. Mahesh K. Rachh is the other member of the
Committee.

Mr. P. B. Deshpande, Company Secretary is the Compliance
Officer of the Company.

Complaintsreceived during the year:-

Nature of Complaints Received Cleared Pending

Non-receipt of share 1 1 Nil
certificates

Non-receipt of dividend/ 2 2 Nil
interest warrant

Others/miscellaneous 3 3 Nil
Total 6 6 Nil

There was no transfer of shares pending as on March 31, 2013.

The above information is based on the details received from the
Company's Registrars, Sharepro Services(India) Private Limited.
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I X. Meansof Communication :-

V1. Subsidiary Company:-

AppleAsset Management Limited isthe only non-listed subsidiary
of the Company. Mr. Mahesh Raghavan Menon and Mr. Mahendra
S. Shah, Non-Executive Directors of the Company are on the
Board of AppleAsset Management Limited.

The Company’s Board reviewsthe financial statementsof Apple
Asset Management Limited. Attention of the Directors of the
Company is drawn to all significant transactions and
arrangements entered into by the subsidiary company.

.Details of Annual General Meetings:-

Annual General  Location Date Time
Meeting
26" Annual M. C. Ghia Hall, September 3.00 p.m.
General Meeting  Bhogilal Hargovindas 25, 2012

Building, Floor 4, 18/20

Kaikhushru Dubash Marg,

Mumbai 400 001.
25" Annual M. C. Ghia Hall, September 3.00 p.m.
General Meeting  Bhogilal Hargovindas 28, 2011

Building, Floor 4, 18/20

Kaikhushru Dubash Marg,

Mumbai 400 001.
24" Annual M. C. Ghia Hall, September 3.00 p.m.
General Meeting  Bhogilal Hargovindas 28, 2010

Building, Floor 4, 18/20
Kaikhushru Dubash Marg,
Mumbai 400 001

No Special Resolution was put through postal ballot last year
nor isit proposed to be put in the current year.

Financial Meeting Date Time No. of Special
Year Resolutions passed
20092010 24"AGM 2892010 3.00p.m. None
20102011  25"AGM 2892011 3.00p.m. None
2011-2012  26"AGM 2592012 3.00p.m. None

VIII. Disclosures:-

The Company has not entered into any transaction of amaterial
nature with the promoters, the Directors, the management,
subsidiary or relatives, etc., that may have any potential conflict
with the interests of the Company. Transactions with related
parties have been disclosed in Clause 10 of Note No.19 to the
Accountsin the Annual Report.

The Company has complied with the requirements of BSE
Limited, SEBI and other statutory authorities on all matters
related to capital marketsduring thelast three years. Therewere
no penaltiesimposed nor any strictures passed on the Company
by BSE Limited, SEBI or any other statutory authority relating
to the above.

In compliance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prevention of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992, as amended
till date, on prevention of Insider Trading, the Company has a
comprehensive Code of Conduct and the same is being strictly
adhered to by its management, staff and relevant business
associates.

(o)

The half-yearly/quarterly results are published in the newspapers
(Mumbai edition) and are not being sent to each household of
shareholders. Theresultsare usually published in The Free Press
Journal and Navshakti.

The Company maintains its own  website
www.applefinance.co.in. The Company posts information
relating to its financial results on www.corpfiling.co.in under
the Corporate Filing and Dissemination System as required by
SEBI. The Company does not make presentationsto institutional
investors or analysts.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of the
Directors' Report.

General Shareholder information:-

Date, time and venue
of theAGM

. September 25,2013 at 3.30p.m.at M. C.
Ghia Hall, Bhogilal Hargovindas
Building, Floor 4, 18/20 Kaikhushru

Dubash Marg, Mumbai 400 001
Financial Calendar : April 1, 2013 to March 31, 2014

Adoption of Quarterly Results
for the quarter ending -

June 30, 2013
September 30, 2013
December 31, 2013
March 31, 2014

Date of Book Closure

1 onor before

: August 14, 2013

: November 14, 2013
. February 14, 2014

: May 30, 2014

. September 19, 2013 to September 25,
2013 (both daysinclusive).

: The Board of Directors has not
recommended dividend.

: The Company's equity sharesarelisted
on BSE Limited. The Company has
paid the annual listing fees to BSE
Limited for the financia year 2013-

Dividend Payment Date

Listing on Stock Exchange

2014.
Stock Code : 500014 on BSE Limited.
ISIN Number for NSDL . INEO96A 01010
and CDSL

Market Price Data : The high and low prices of every

month during the financial year 2012-

2013 are given below.
Year 2012-2013 High ®) Low )
April 2.50 2.06
May 3.03 215
June 2.16 1.93
July 2.26 191
August 211 191
September 2.16 1.97
October 2.30 191
November 2.06 181
December 2.08 1.89
January 2.10 1.89
February 191 1.75
March 1.76 1.29

—/



APPLE FINANCE LIMITED

Registrar and Sharepro Services (India) Private
Transfer Agents:  Limited, 13AB, SamhitaWarehousing
Complex, Floor 2, SakinakaTelephone
Exchange Lane, Off Andheri-Kurla
Road, Sakinaka, Andheri (East),
Mumbai 400072.
Phone: 6772 0400 « Fax: 2859 1568
Contact Persons:  Mrs. IndiraP. Karkeraand Mr. Gopal
S. Poojary
Share Transfer System :
A Committee of Directorscomprising Mr. Mahesh K. Rachh
and Mr. Mahesh Raghavan Menon has been constituted to
approve the transfer, transmission, dematerialization and
rematerialization of shares, issue of duplicate share certificates
and allied matters. The Company's Registrars, Sharepro
Services(India) Private Limited have adequateinfrastructure
to process share transfers and dematerialization of shares.
A predetermined process cycle at regular interval ensures
transfer of shares expeditioudly and thereafter an option | etter
issent to thetransferee(s) for dematerialization. In compliance
with the Listing Agreement, every six months, a Practicing
Company Secretary audits the system and a certificate to
that effect isissued and filed with BSE Limited.

Distribution of Shareholding ason March 31, 2013:-

Shareholding No. of % of No. of % of

Folios Total Shares Total
1-500 118402 93.93 17209776 30.92
501-1000 4522 358 36143% 649
1001- 2000 1616 128 2551613 458
2001- 3000 485 0.38 1261192 226
3001- 4000 223 018 812892 146
4001- 5000 20 019 1208943 217
5001- 10000 01 024 2318191 416
10001 and above 267 022 26696119 47.96
Total 126066 100.00 55673122 100.00

72.96% of the equity share capital has been dematerialized
uptoMarch 31, 2013.

Categories of Shareholding ason March 31, 2013:-

Category No. of Sharesheld Percentage of
Shareholding
Promoters 13751596 24.70
Mutual Fundsand UTI 13415 0.02
Banks, Financid Institutions
and Insurance Companies 15540 0.03
Flis 200 0.00
Private Corporate Bodies 3470842 6.23
Indian Public 34168341 61.38
NRIs/OCBs 936038 1.68
Trusts 3317150 5.96
Totd 55673122 100.00

e Addressfor correspondence:-
The Company Secretary
Apple Finance Limited
8 Apegjay House, 130 Mumbai Samachar Marg,
Mumbai 400 023. « Email:apple.investors@gmail.com

MANAGING DIRECTOR'SCERTIFICATION IN TERMSOF
CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT WITH BSE
LIMITED

I, Mahesh K. Rachh, Managing Director of Apple Finance Limited
hereby certify that:-

a) | havereviewed financial statementsand the cash flow statement
for the year and that to the best of my knowledge and belief:-

i) thesestatementsdo not contain any materially untrue statement
or omit any material fact or contain statementsthat might be
mideading.

i) thesestatementstogether present atrue and fair view of the
Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b) To the best of my knowledge and belief, no transaction entered
into by the Company during the year, whichisfraudulent, illegal
or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

c) | accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal
controls for financia reporting and that | have evaluated the
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company
pertaining to financial reporting and | have disclosed to the
Auditors deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
controls, if any, of which | am aware and the steps | have taken
or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

d) | haveindicated totheAuditorsand the Audit Committee:-
i) significant changesininternal control over financial reporting
during theyear;
i)  significant changesin accounting policiesduring theyear and
that the same have been disclosed in the notesto thefinancial
statements; and

i) instances of significant fraud which | have become aware
and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or
an employee having a significant role in the Company’s
internal control system over financial reporting.

Mahesh K. Rachh
Managing Director

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2013
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DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR
REGARDING AFFIRMATION BY THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
OF THE COMPANY TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT FORITS
DIRECTORSAND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

| hereby declarethat as per the requirement of Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement with BSE Limited, all the Board Membersand the Senior
Management Personnel of the Company have confirmed compliance
with the Code of Conduct of Apple Finance Limited for its Directors
and Senior Management, for the year ended March 31, 2013.

Mahesh K. Rachh
Managing Director

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2013

AUDITORS CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE OF
CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AS PER
CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGES

To the Members of Apple Finance Limited :-

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate
Governance by Apple Finance Limited (“the Company”) for the year
ended March 31, 2013, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement of the Company with the Stock Exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the
responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to
the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company
for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on
the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipul ated
in the above-mentioned Listing Agreement.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to
thefutureviability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For Mahendra Kumbhat & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Amar Chand Bagrecha
Partner

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2013

The performance of share price of the Company in comparison with the BSE Sensex :-
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APPLE FINANCE LIMITED

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO DIRECTION ISSUED VIDE CIRCULAR NO.2/2011 UNDER
SECTION 212(8) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 RELATING TO SUBSIDIARY COMPANY,
APPLEASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Sr. | Particulars ®
No.
a) | Capita 112,000,000
b) | Reserves (106,088,755)
c) | Total Assets 52,461,634
d) | Tota Liabilities 52,461,634
e) | Detailsof Investments 52,414,613
(except investment in subsidiaries)

f) | Turnover 11,600
0) | Profit/(Loss) before Taxation (24,232)
h) | Provisionfor Taxation

i) Profit/(Loss) after Taxation (24,232)
)] Proposed Dividend
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Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of
Apple Finance Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Apple
Finance Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2013, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash
Flow Statement for the year then ended and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

M anagement’s Responsibility for the Financial Satements

The Company’s Management is responsible for the preparation of
thesefinancial statementsthat giveatrueand fair view of thefinancial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in Section
211(3C) of the CompaniesAct, 1956 (“the Act”) and in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India This
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance
of internal controls relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statementsarefree
from material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the
Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statementsin order to design audit procedures that are appropriatein
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Company’sinternal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

I'n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the
information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
trueand fair view in conformity with the accounting principlesgenerally
accepted in India, subject to:

a) PointNo.1of Note‘19' regarding ‘going concern’ assumption
of the Company.

b) Point No.11 of Note ‘19’ regarding non-consideration of
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) amounting to ¥ 194,230,222

In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the
Company asat March 31, 2013.

@

In the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss
for the year ended on that date, and

()

In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

©

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003
(“the Order") issued by the Central Government in terms of
Section 227(4A) of theAct, we givein the Annexure astatement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:

a  We have obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Company so far asit appearsfrom our
examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and
the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d. inour opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement comply with the
Accounting Standards referred to in Section 211(3C) of the
Act.

e.  On the basis of the written representations received from
the Directors as on March 31, 2013, taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the Directorsis disqualified as
on March 31, 2013, from being appointed as a Director in
terms of Section 274(1)(g) of the Act.

For Mahendra Kumbhat and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.105770W

Amar Chand Bagrecha
Partner
Member ship No.56605

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2013

Annexureto the Independent Auditors Report

(Referred toin paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Matters required as per Paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003:

1. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particularsincluding quantitative detail sand situation of fixed
assets.

(10)
®



APPLE FINANCE LIMITED

(b) TheManagement hasverified al the assetsduring the year.
We have been informed that no material discrepancies have
been noticed on the assets physically verified by the

Management.

(c) The Company has not disposed of substantial part of fixed

assets during the year.

(8 Theinventory has been physically verified during the year
by the Management. In our opinion, the frequency of

verification is reasonable.

(b) The procedures of physical verification of inventories
followed by the Management are reasonable and adequate
in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its

business.

(c) The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory.
We have been informed that no material discrepancies
between the physical stocks and the book records were

noticed on such verification.

(@) The Company has not taken loans from companies, firms
and other parties listed in the Register maintained under

Section 301 of the Act.

(b) The Company has granted |oan to one party required to be
listed in the Register to be maintained under Section 301 of
theAct, the maximum amount outstanding at any time during
theyear for thisloanis 47,90,500 and the year end balance

is¥ 47,90,500 whichisinterest free.
(0

Inour opinion, theterms and conditions, wherever applicable,
on which loan is granted are not prima facie prejudicial to

theinterest of the Company, except interest freeloan granted.

(d) Loan granted by the Company is without stipulation of

repayment term and hence, we are unable to comment upon
regularity of repayment or otherwise and overdue amount.

In our opinion and according to theinformation and explanations
given to us, there are in general adequate internal control
procedures commensurate with the size of the Company and the
nature of its business, with regard to purchase of fixed assets,
and for sale of services and we have not observed any major
weaknesses in internal control.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not entered into the transactions requiring to be
entered in the Register maintained under Section 301 of theAct.

The Company has not accepted deposits from public during the
year and hence, the provisions of Sections58A and 58AA of the
Act and the rules thereunder are not applicable.

The Company does not have an Internal Audit system.

We have been informed that the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of Cost records under Section
209(1)(d) of theAct.

a) We have been informed that during the year under review,
the Company has regularly deposited all undisputed
statutory dues including the Provident Fund, Investor
Education and Protection Fund, Employees State | nsurance
Scheme, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax,
Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cessand any other statutory dues,

10.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

wherever applicable. Therewereno arrearsasat 31st March,
2013 for aperiod of morethan six monthsfrom the date they
became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us,
disputed statutory dues not deposited are nil.

The Company’s accumulated losses at the end of the financial
year are more than fifty per cent of itsnet worth and the Company
has made cash profit in the current financial year and also in the
previous financial year.

The Company has not defaulted in respect of payment of dues
to banks, financial institutions and debenture-holders.

The Company has not granted |oans and advances on the basis
of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other
securities.

As informed to us, the Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi/
mutual benefit fund/society and hence, clause (xiii) of paragraph
4 of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company has maintained proper records of
thetransactions and contractsin respect of investmentsin shares,
securities, debentures and other investments and timely entries
have been made therein. Except shares of SpectrumAlkyd Resins
Limited, all theinvestments are held by the Company initsown
name.

The Company has not given any guarantees for |oans taken by
other companies and hence, clause (xv) of paragraph 4 of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not obtained term loans during the year and
hence, clause (xvi) of paragraph 4 of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company has not raised fund on short term basis during the
year; and hence the question of same being used for any long
term investments does not arise.

During the year, no preferential allotment of shares has been
made to the parties and companies covered in the Register
maintained under Section 301 of the Act.

According to theinformation and explanation given to us, during
the period covered by our Audit Report, the Company has not
issued any debentures, and hence the question of creation of
security does not arise.

Sincethe Company has not come out with public issue during the
year, clause (xx) of paragraph 4 of the Order is not applicable.

21. According to theinformation and explanation givento us, no fraud

on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

For Mahendra Kumbhat and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.105770W

Amar Chand Bagrecha
Partner
Membership No.56605

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2013
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BALANCE SHEET ASAT 315" MARCH 2013

®
Particulars Note  Asat 31st March 2013  Asat 31st March 2012
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' funds
(@) Share capital 2 556,701,477 556,701,477
(b) Reservesand surplus 3 (296,965,596) (296,032,339)
259,735,881 260,669,138
Non-current liabilities
(8 Long-term provisions 4 68,503,007 60,710,953
68,503,007 60,710,953
Current liabilities
(8 Trade payables 5 10,287 (50,000)
(b) Other current liabilities 6 1,432,803 8,955,274
(c) Short-term provisions 7 9,097,218 7,353,467
10,540,308 16,258,741
TOTAL 338,779,197 337,638,832
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets 8
(i) Tangible assets 61,451,524 62,527,481
(b) Non-current investments 9 54,406,412 54,406,412
115,857,936 116,933,893
Current assets
(& Inventories 10 24,675,000 24,675,000
(b) Cash and bank balances 1 184,831,065 182,423,608
(c) Short-term loans and advances 12 4,790,500 4,745,500
(d) Other current assets 13 8,624,696 8,860,831
222,921,261 220,704,939
TOTAL 338,779,197 337,638,832
Summary of significant accounting policies 1
Notes to the financial statements 19
In the opinion of the Board, the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are
approximately of the value stated, if realized in the ordinary course
of business. The provision for al known liabilities is adequate and not
in excess of the amount reasonably necessary.
As per our attached Report of even date
For Mahendra Kumbhat & Associates On behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.105770W
Amar Chand Bagrecha Mahesh K. Rachh Mahesh Menon
Partner Managing Director Director
Member ship No.56605
Place: Mumbai Mahendra S. Shah P. B. Deshpande
Dated: May 30, 2013 Director Company Secretary

(12)
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APPLE FINANCE LIMITED
L __________________________________________________________________________________|

PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2013

®
Particulars Note Year ending Year ending
31¢ March 2013 31 March 2012
I. Revenue from operations 14 13,000 12,500
Il. Other income 15 15,082,989 16,862,659
Il. Total revenue 15,095,989 16,875,159
IV. Expenses:
Employee benefits expense 16 3,931,612 3,837,153
Depreciation and amortization expense 8 1,979,157 2,082,307
Other expenses 17 9,624,783 9,515,623
Total expenses 15,535,552 15,435,083
V. Profit/(Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary itemsand tax (439,562) 1,440,076
V1. Exceptional item- Excess provision for Fringe Benefit Tax Written Back - -
VII. Profit/(L oss) before extraordinary items and tax (439,562) 1,440,076
VII1.Extraordinary Items-Prior Period Income - -
Extraordinary Items-Prior Period Expenses 17 489,351 (230,359)
IX. Profit/(Loss) before tax (928,913) 1,670,435
X. Tax expense:
(1) Current tax - Wealth Tax 4,343 6,014
(2) Deferred tax - -
X1. Profit/(Loss) for the period from continuing operations (933,256) 1,664,421
XII. Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operations - -
X111.Tax expense of discontinuing operations - -
XI1V.Profit/(L oss) from discontinuing oper ations (after tax) - -
XV. Profit/(L oss) for the period (933,256) 1,664,421
XVI .Earnings/(Loss) per equity share 18
(1) Basic (0.02) 0.03
(2) Diluted (0.02) 0.03
Summary of significant accounting policies 1
Notesto thefinancial statements 19

In the opinion of the Board, the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are
approximately of the value stated, if realized in the ordinary course

of business. The provision for all known liabilities is adeguate and not
in excess of the amount reasonably necessary.

As per our attached Report of even date

For Mahendra Kumbhat & Associates On behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.105770W

Amar Chand Bagrecha Mahesh K. Rachh Mahesh Menon
Partner Managing Director Director

Member ship No.56605

Place: Mumbai Mahendra S. Shah P. B. Deshpande
Dated: May 30, 2013 Director Company Secretary

(13)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2013

For the year ended For the year ended
PARTICULARS 31% March, 2013 31% March, 2012
g g 04 04
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax and extraordinary items (439,562) 1,440,076
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 1,979,157 2,082,307
Profit/(Loss) on Sale of Assets and Investments - (188,408)
Investment Income - Dividend/Interest (15,082,989) (16,329,251)
_ (13,103,832) ——m—— (14,435,352)
Operating profit before working capital changes (13,543,394) (12,995,276)
Adjustments for:
Trade payables and other short term liabilities 2,073,621 1,075,432
L oans and Advances (net) 730,179 (265,225)
2,803,800 810,207
Cash generated from operations (10,739,594) (12,185,069)
Interest paid - -
Direct taxes paid (-)/Refund of Income Tax (+) (543,387) 6,676,146
(543,387) 6,676,146
Cash flow before extraordinary items (11,282,981) (5,508,923)
Extraordinary items (489,351) 230,359
Net cash from operating activities A (11,772,332) (5,278,564)
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase and sale of fixed assets including
advances given for work-in-progress (903,200) (27,750)
Investment redemption/sold - 20,774,189
Interest received 14,407,770 15,239,173
Dividend received 675,219 1,090,078
Net cash used in investing activities ...B 14,179,789 37,075,690
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings (net) - -
Net cash used in financing activities ...C - -
Net | ncrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 2,407,457 31,797,126
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year
(opening balance) 182,423,608 150,626,482
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (closing balance) 184,831,065 182,423,608

Notes:
1. Cash and cash equivalents include cash and cheques in hand and balances with scheduled banks.
2. Previousyear’s figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary.

As per our attached Report of even date

For Mahendra Kumbhat & Associates On behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No.105770W

Amar Chand Bagrecha Mahesh K. Rachh Mahesh Menon
Partner Managing Director Director

Member ship No.56605

Place: Mumbai Mahendra S. Shah P. B. Deshpande
Dated: May 30, 2013 Director Company Secretary
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APPLE FINANCE LIMITED

NOTE " 1"

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

1

Accounting Convention and Concepts

The Company follows the Historical Cost Convention and the
Mercantile System of Accounting where the income and
expenditure are recognised on accrual basis.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are valued at cost |less depreciation. Cost includes
all expensesincurred for acquisition of assets.

Depreciation

The Company provides depreciation on straight-line method on
apro rata basis on completed month basis at the rate specified
in Schedule X1V to the Companies Act, 1956.

Investments

All investments are stated at cost of acquisition. Theinvestments
sold during the year are accounted on first-in-first-out basis and
investments purchased and sold during the year are shown on
net basis. Provision is made for diminution in the value of
investments, wherever required.

Valuation of Socks

Stock of shares and securities valued at cost or fair value,
whichever isless.

NOTE “2" TO BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315" MARCH 2013

Retirement Benefits

The provision for retirement benefits such as provident fund,
gratuity and superannuation is made for employees from the date
of their respective appointment.

(i) Company’s contribution to the Provident Fund, Pension
Fund, Superannuation Fund and other fund is charged to
the Profit and L oss Account.

(if) Theamount of Gratuity liability as ascertained on the basis
of acturial valuation by Life Insurance Corporation of India
ispaid/provided and charged to the Profit and LossAccount.

(iif) Provisionismadetowardsliability for |eave encashment.
Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there
is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount
of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset isless than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its
recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment
loss and is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account. If at the
Balance Sheet date thereisan indication that previously assessed
impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is
reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount
subject to a maximum of depreciated historical cost.

SHARE CAPITAL Par Value Balance Outstanding I ssued/(Reductions) Balance Outstanding
per share asat 31 March 2012 duringtheyear asat 31 March 2013
® No. of Shares Value | No.of Shares Value | No.of Shares Value
® ® ®)
Equity Share Capital
Authorized: 10 75,000,000 | 750,000,000 - - 75,000,000 750,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up 10 55673122 | 556,731,220 - - 55,673,122 556,731,220
Less: Cdllsin arrears by others 29,743 - - - 29,743
10 55,673,122 | 556,701,477 - - 55,673,122 556,701,477
Preference Share Capital
Authorized: 100 7,500,000 | 750,000,000 - - 7,500,000 750,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up 100 - - - - - -
Par Value No. of Value Holding No. of Value Holding
per share Shares ® (%) Shares ® (%)
® 31/03/2012 | 31/03/2012 31/03/201281/03/2013 31/03/2013 31/03/2013
Sharehed by Holding Company
Not Applicable
Holding mor ethan 5%
AdamicaManagement Consultancy Ltd. | 10 6,023,180 60,231,800 10.82%| 5,528,180 55,281,800 9.93%
Overseer Investments Pvt. Ltd. 10 4,134,300 41,343,000 743%| 4,134,300 41,343,000 743%
Chivas Trading Pvt. Ltd. 10 3,168,216 31,682,160 56%%)| 3168216 31,682,160 5.69%
Apple Finance EmployeesWelfare Trust | 10 3,316,680 33,166,800 596%| 3,316,680 33,166,800 5.96%

Note: The Company has not allotted any shares during the last five years, preceding March 31, 2013.

(15)
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NOTE “3" TO BALANCE SHEET ASAT 315" MARCH 2013 ®
RESERVESAND SURPLUS Balanceason Additions/ Balanceason
31 March 2012 Deductions/ 31t March 2013
Appropriations
Capital Redemption Reserve 20,000,000 - 20,000,000
Debenture Redemption Reserve 100,000,000 - 100,000,000
General Reserve 400,000,000 - 400,000,000
Surplus at the beginning of the year (1,326,991,943) - -
Add: Profit after tax for the year - (933,256) -
Less: Transfer to General Reserve - - -
Less: Proposed Dividend including Dividend Distribution Tax - - -
Surplus at the end of the year - - (1,327,925,200)
Capital Reserve 6,933,420 - 6,933,420
Capital Resereve on Settlement of Loans 427,026,184 - 427,026,184
Reserve Fund under Section 45IC(1) of the

Reserve Bank of IndiaAct,1934 77,000,000 - 77,000,000
Total (296,032,339) (933,256) (296,965,596)
®)

NOTE “4” TO BALANCE SHEET ASAT 315" MARCH 2013
LONG-TERM PROVISIONS Balance as at Additions Utilizations| Reversals Balance as at
31% March 2012 31 March 2013
Provisions for Non-Performing Assets 60,710,953 - (7,792,054) - 68,503,007
Grand Total 60,710,953 - (7,792,054) - 68,503,007
®)

NOTE “5” TO BALANCE SHEET ASAT 315 MARCH 2013

TRADE PAYABLES

Asat 31% March 2013

Asat 31% March 2012

NOTE “6” TO BALANCE SHEET ASAT 315 MARCH 2013

Others 10,287 (50,000)
Grand Total 10,287 (50,000)
)

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Asat 31% March 2013

Asat 31% March 2012

Other Payable 1,223,773 8,931,304
Duties and Taxes Payable 209,030 23,970
Grand Total 1,432,803 8,955,274
®)

NOTE “7" TO BALANCE SHEET ASAT 315" MARCH 2013
SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS Balance as at Additions Utilizations| Reversals Balance as at
31¢ March 2012 31 March 2013
Provision for employee benefits 541,161 86,341 66,609 - 560,893
Provision for expenses 6,812,306 8,536,325 6,812,306 - 8,536,325
Grand Total 7,353,467 8,622,666 6,878,915 - 9,097,218

(16)
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L __________________________________________________________________________________|

®)
NOTE “8" TO BALANCE SHEET ASAT 315" MARCH 2013
FIXED ASSETS Gross |Additions|Deletions | Gross Block| Depreciation|Depreciation |Depreciation|Depreciation [Impairment| Net Block
Block as at| up to for the on up to losses/ as at
asat 1% April 31% March 31* March year| deductions| 31% March| reversals 31% March
2012 2013 2012 2013 2013
Tangible Assets
Land
- Freehold 955,066 - - 955,066 - - - - - 955,066
Buildings
- Owned 82420442 | 903,200 -| 83323642 25820023 1,346,656 -| 27,166,679 -| 56,156,963
Plant & Equipment
- Owned
Office Equipment 4,047,326 - - 4,047,326 3,334,976 96,780 -l 3431756 - 615,570
Computers 18,042,048 - -| 18042048 17945208 46,753 -l 17,991,961 - 50,087
Electrical Fittings 1,390,185 - - 1,390,185 769,293 66,036 - 835,329 - 554,856
Furniture & Fixtures 16,418,561 - -| 16418561  14597,157 173,980 - 14,771,137 - 1,647,424
Vehicles 2,620,548 - - 2,620,548 900,038 248,952 -l 1,148990 - 1,471,558
Total 125894,176 | 903,200 - | 126,797,376 63,366,695 1,979,157 -| 65345852 -| 61451524
Previous Year 125,866,426 27,750 - | 125894176 61,284,388 2,082,307 -| 63,366,695 -| 62527481
NOTE “9" TO BALANCE SHEET ASAT 315" MARCH 2013
NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
No. of Face As at 31¢ As at 31¢
Securities Value March 2013 March 2012
®) ) )
Trade Investments
(Fully paid unless otherwise stated)
Quoted Investments - Equity Shares (At cost)
AmbikaCotton MillsLimited 180,233 10 8,651,200 8,651,200
Anjani SolventsindiaLimited 74,853 10 748,530 748,530
Anod Plasma Spray Limited 75,000 10 750,000 750,000
CiplaLimited 36,510 2 652,302 652,302
Indian Lead Limited 332,066 10 12,331,200 12,331,200
Inland PrintersLimited 33,300 10 1,998,000 1,998,000
Pittie Cements & IndustriesLimited 118,126 10 12,993,860 12,993,860
Sagar Tourist ResortsLimited 21,342 10 213,420 213,420
Shri RenugaTextilesLimited 40,000 10 6,000,000 6,000,000
Vital FoodsLimited 93,900 10 1,032,900 1,032,900
Total (A) 45,371,412 45,371,412
Unquoted Investments - Equity Shares (At cost)
Aldrich PharmaceuticalsLimited 210,000 10 7,035,000 7,035,000
SpectrumAlkyd & ResinsLimited 133,333 10 1,500,000 1,500,000
VijayaHomeLoans Limited 50,000 10 500,000 500,000
Total (B) 9,035,000 9,035,000
Total (A) + (B) 54,406,412 54,406,412
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®)
NOTE “9” TO BALANCE SHEET ASAT 315" MARCH 2013 (Contd.)
NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Cost Market Value
) ®
Aggregate Value of Quoted I nvestment
Equity Shares 45,371,412 47,586,267 ***
(PreviousYear) (45,371,412) (37,685,465)
Aggregate Value of Unquoted | nvestment
Equity Shares 9,035,000
(PreviousYear) (9,035,000)
Total 54,406,412
(PreviousYear) (54,406,412)

shares’ market valueisnot available.

*** Market value of quoted investmentsincludes only market value of CiplaLimited and Ambika Cotton MillsLimited, since other quoted

Q)
NOTE “10" TO BALANCE SHEET ASAT 315" MARCH 2013
INVENTORIES (Valued at cost or market As on 31% March 2013 Ason 31% March 2012
value whichever is less) Inventory Goods-in- Final Inventory | Goods-in- Final

Transit Value Transit Value

Unquoted Equity Shares
1,41,000 Equity Shares of 10 each of 24,675,000 - 24,675,000 24,675,000 -| 24,675,000
Indo Deutsche Metallo Chimique Limited
Total 24,675,000 - 24,675,000 24,675,000 -| 24,675,000
Note: Market value of stock-in-tradeis not available and, therefore, it isvalued at cost.

)

NOTE “11” TO BALANCE SHEET ASAT 315" MARCH 2013

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

As at 31% March 2013

As at 31% March 2012

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cashon hand 25,018 24,784
Balance with Banks 4920 572,197
Bank Deposits (lessthan 3 months maturity)* 147,738,436 21,770,000
147,768,374 22,366,980
OTHERS

Bank Deposits (more than 3 months but lessthan 20,894,586 39,344,586

12 months maturity)
Bank Deposits (more than 12 months maturity)** 16,168,105 120,712,042
37,062,691 160,056,628
Total 184,831,065 182,423,608

*  QOut of which 12,73,39,172 isunder lien with Kotak MahindraBank Ltd.

** (Previous year ¥11,96,22,338)

(18)
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APPLE FINANCE LIMITED
L __________________________________________________________________________________|

)
NOTE “12” TO BALANCE SHEET ASAT 315" MARCH 2013
SHORT-TERM LOANSAND ADVANCES
As on 31% March 2013 As on 31 March 2012
Secured, | Unsecured,| Doubtful Total | Secured, |Unsecured, | Doubtful Total
considered | considered considered | consider ed
good good good good
L oans and advancesto
related parties
Subsidiary Company
Apple Asset Management Ltd. - 4,790,500 - 14,790,500 -| 4,745,500 - | 4,745,500
Less: Provision for bad and
doubtful debts - - - - - - - -
- 4,790,500 - 14,790,500 -| 4,745,500 - | 4,745,500
Other loans and advances - - - - - - - -
Less: Provision for bad and - - - - - - - -
doubtful debts
Grand Total - 4,790,500 - 14,790,500 -| 4,745,500 - | 4,745,500
)
NOTE “13” TO BALANCE SHEET ASAT 315" MARCH 2013
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Ason 31% March 2013 Ason 31% March 2012
Secured, | Unsecured,| Doubtful Total Secured, | Unsecured, | Doubtful Total
considered | considered considered | considered
good good good good
Interest accrued on Investment - 2,068,801 - 12,068,801 -1 2,101,481 - 12,101,481
Security Deposits - 428,530 -| 428,530 - 428,530 - | 428,530
Prepaid Expenses - 497,778 -| 497,778 - 664,278 - 664,278
Other Receivables - 2,599,000 - 12,599,000 -| 3,175,000 - | 3,175,000
Advance Income Tax and TDS - 2,846,370 - 12,846,370 -| 2,307,326 - 12,307,326
Sales Tax paid against appeal - 184,217 -| 184,217 - 184,217 - | 184,217
Grand Total - 8,624,696 - 18,624,696 -| 8,860,831 - | 8,860,831

®
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®)
NOTE “14” TO PROFIT AND LOSSSTATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 315" MARCH 2013
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS Year ending Year ending
31¢ March 2013 31¢ March 2012
Hire-Purchase Income 13,000 12,500
Total 13,000 12,500
)
NOTE “15" TO PROFIT AND LOSSSTATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 315" MARCH 2013
OTHER INCOME Year ending Year ending
31¢ March 2013 31% March 2012
Interest 14,340,077 13,774,454
(TDSX 14,41,591 Previous Year % 13,73,688)
Interest on Income Tax Refund 67,693 1,464,719
Dividend Income:
- Others 675,219 1,090,078
Short-Term Capital Gain on Sale of Mutual Fund Units - 188,408
Miscellaneous Income - 345,000
Total 15,082,989 16,862,659
)
NOTE “16” TO PROFIT AND LOSSSTATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 315" MARCH 2013
EMPLOYEE BENEFITSEXPENSES Year ending Year ending
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
Salaries and wages 3,091,177 2,824,846
Contribution to Provident and other funds 534,467 747,510
Staff welfare expenses 305,968 264,797
Total 3,931,612 3,837,153
®)
NOTE “17" TO PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 315" MARCH 2013
OTHER EXPENSES Year ending Year ending
31¢ March 2013 31% March 2012
Power and fuel 338,485 399,371
Repairs to machinery 37,417 -
Repairs to building 50,000 -
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 20,106 13,189
Insurance 21,037 20,698
Rates and taxes excluding taxes on income 119,985 32,632
Society Charges 2,035,993 1,721,595
Legal and Professional fees 682,447 999,873
Printing and Stationery 40,268 39,909
Telephone and Fax Expenses 176,876 214,693
Courier Expenses 7,291 12,624
Service Charges 573,528 525,865
Security Charges 426,092 469,829
Travelling Expenses 368,886 765,366
Conveyance 13,113 9,870
Motor Car Expenses 1,181,751 897,889
AGM Expenses 2,041,620 1,912,790
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APPLE FINANCE LIMITED

®)
NOTE “17" TO PROFIT AND LOSSSTATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 315" MARCH 2013 (Contd.)
OTHER EXPENSES Year ending Year ending
31 March 2013 31t March 2012
Registrar, Share and Debenture Expenses 870,150 824,862
Directors’ Sitting Fees 12,000 12,000
Membership and Subscription 4,505 37,973
Bank Charges 150 -
Books and Periodicals 8,060 4,805
Miscellaneous Expenses 13,560 16,960
Payments to the Auditor
(a) asAuditor 393,260 393,260
(b) for Tax Audit 112,360 112,360
(c) for Limited Review Audit 75,843 77,210
9,624,783 9,515,623
Prior period items (in case of [0ss)
Rates and taxes excluding taxes on income 489,351 (254,173)
Motor Car Expenses - 23,814
489,351 (230,359)
Total 10,114,134 9,285,264
®)
NOTE “18" TO PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 315" MARCH 2013
EARNING PER SHARE Year ending Year ending
31 March 2013 31% March 2012
(a) Net Profit after tax attributable to Equity Shareholders for Basic EPS (933,256) 1,664,421
Add/Less: Adjustment relating to potential equity shares - -
(933,256) 1,664,421
(b) Weighted average No. of equity shares outstanding during the year
For Basic Earning Per Share 55,673,122 55,673,122
For Diluted Earning Per Share 55,673,122 55,673,122
(c) Basic Earning/(Loss) Per Share (0.02) 0.03
Diluted Earning/(L oss) Per Share (0.02) 0.03
Face Value Per Equity Share 10 10
(d) Reconciliation between No. of sharesused for calculating basic and
diluted earning per share
Particulars
No. of shares used for calculating basic earning per share 55,673,122 55,673,122
Add: Potential equity shares - -
No. of sharesused for calculating diluted earning per share 55,673,122 55,673,122

®
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NOTE “19" - NOTESTO ACCOUNTS
Notes forming part of the Accounts for the year ended 315" March 2013

(2

~

©)

@

©)

(6)

Asat Asat
31¢ March, 2013 31% March, 2012
4 4
(1) Asthe business was unviable, the Company surrendered its Certificate of Registration
of Non-Banking Financial Institution to Reserve Bank of India. Reserve Bank of India
has cancelled the said Certificate of Registration vide their letter No. DNBS.
MRO.N0.4716 & 4869/ 02.01.60.Apple/ 2003-04 dated January 13, 2004 and January
18, 2004. In view of this, in terms of Section 45-1A of the RBI Act, 1934, now the
Company is not entitled to carry on the business of Non-Banking Financial Institution.
However, the Company can in future carry on the business of Non-Banking Financial
Ingtitution after taking necessary approval from Reserve Bank of India. The Company
does have businessincome from Interest, etc. and also have Stock-in-Trade for business
and hence, accounts have been prepared on the * Going Concern Basis' and Historical Cost
Method.
Contingent Liabilitiesin respect of:
(@) Claimsagainst the Company not acknowledge as debts 100,000,000 100,000,000
The Company has been advised that it does not have taxableincome under the |ncome-tax
Act, 1961 for the current financial year and accordingly, no provision for Income Tax has
been madein the Profit and LossAccount of the Company. Further, Wealth Tax isaccounted
intheyear inwhichitispaid and hence, no provision for Wealth Tax has been madein the
Profit and Loss Account of the Company.
(@ Allinvestmentsareinthe name of the Company, except those under transfer/delivery.
(b) All theinvestmentsare held by the Company aslong-term investments, except shown
as Stock-in-Trade.
Prior period expensesdetails:
OTHER EXPENSES Year ending Year ending
31 March 2013 31¢ March 2012
4 4
Rates and taxes excluding taxes on income 489,351 (254,173)
Motor Car Expenses - 23,814
Total 489,351 (230,359)
Remuneration to Directors:
(@) Remuneration paid to the Managing Director:
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
4 4
Salaries and Contribution to the Provident and other funds 1,899,342 1,588,634
Perquisites® 39,600 39,600
Total 1,938,942 1,628,234

()

®)
9)

* Value of perquisitesis determined as per the Income-tax Rules, 1962.
(b) Since no commission is paid/payable to any Director, the computation of profits
under Section 349 of the CompaniesAct, 1956 has not been made.
Confirmation of balances from parties have not been received. The balances, therefore,
are as per the books of account of the Company.
There are no separate reportable segments.

Demat Account holding statement as on 31.3.2013 includes 500 equity shares of Numeric
Power Systems Limited, which were already sold by the Company. However, the same
have not been transferred by the transferee in his own name. Consequently, dividends
received on said shares have been considered as current liability.
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|
(10) Disclosuresasrequired by the Accounting Standard 18 “ Related Party Disclosures’ are given below:

1

12)

13

Name of related party and nature of relationship

() DirectorsKey Management Personnel: Remuneration
(& Mr.Mahesh K. Rachh: Managing Director
(i) Directorsand their relatives - Professional Fees
(& Mrs. AnitaMahesh Menon: Director’s spouse
i)  Director Sitting fees
(& Mr.Mahesh Menon: Director
(b)  Mr. MahendraShah: Director

Consequent to theissuance of theAccounting Standard 22 “ Accounting for Taxeson Income”
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, which ismandatory, the Company has
had Deferred Tax Assets (net) of ¥19,42,30,222. In the opinion of the Board of Directors, it
isunlikely that the Company would be ableto take advantage of Deferred Tax Assetsin the
near future and accordingly, Deferred Tax Asset has not been considered.

Particulars

Deferred Tax Asset:

(1) Provisionfor Non-Performing Assets and Diminution in the value of Investments
(2) Carry forward losses (including Unabsorbed Depreciation)

(3) Depreciation

Deferred Tax Asset (net)

(@) Detailsof Stock of Sharesand Securities:-
Unquoted
141,000 Equity Shares of 310 each of Indo Deutsche Metallo Chimique Limited

(b) Quantitative Details:-
(i)  Opening Stock
Quantity (Nos.)
Value (%)
(i)  Purchases/Received against Claims/Acquisition on Merger/Bonus
Quantity (Nos.)
Value (%)
Sales/Reduction on Merger
Quantity (Nos.)
Value (%)
Closing Stock
Quantity (Nos.)
Value (%)

(i)

(iv)

Asper theAccounting Standard 13, Stock-in-Trade (Shares) isrequired to be recognised
at cost or fair value whichever is less. However, the same has not been followed as fair
value of the shares are not available because those Company’s shares are not quoted in
the stock market. Hence, provision for the same has been made.

(14) Cash Flow is prepared as per Indirect Method.

For the year For the year
ended ended

31% March 2013 31% March 2012
54 54

1,938,942 1,628,234
120,000 103,500
6,000 6,000

6,000 6,000

As at As at

31% March 2013 31% March 2012
54 54

20,635,653 20,635,653
192,561,453 199,399,635
(18,966,883) (19,458,484)
194,230,222 200,576,804
24,675,000 24,675,000
24,675,000 24,675,000
141,000 141,000
24,675,000 24,675,000
141,000 141,000
24,675,000 24,675,000

(23)
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(15) ThePreviousYear’sfigures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary. Amount and other disclosures
for the preceding year areincluded asan integral part of the current year’ sfinancial statement and areto beread in relation to the amount
and other disclosurerelating to the current year.

Signaturesto Note“1” to“19”
As per our attached Report of even date
For Mahendra Kumbhat & Associates On behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.105770W

Amar Chand Bagrecha Mahesh K. Rachh Mahesh Menon
Partner Managing Director Director

Member ship No.56605

Place: Mumbai Mahendra S. Shah P. B. Deshpande
Dated: May 30, 2013 Director Company Secretary
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APPLE FINANCE LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To the Board of Directors
of Apple Finance Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements
of Apple Finance Limited (“the Company”), and its subsidiary (the
Company and itssubsidiary constitute “the Group”) which comprise
the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2013, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Cash
Flow Statement for the year then ended and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the
Company in accordance with the requirements of Accounting
Standard 21 (Consolidated Financial Statements) as notified by the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Satements

The Company’s Management is responsible for the preparation of
these consolidated financial statementsthat give atrue and fair view
of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance
of internal controls relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtai n reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal controls relevant to the Group’s preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statementsin order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness

of the Group’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of the accounting estimates made by the Management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believethat the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements give atrue and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, subject to:

a) PointNo.1of Note‘18' regarding ‘going concern’ assumption
of the Company.

b) Point No.11 of Note ‘18’ regarding non-consideration of
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) amounting to ¥ 194,230,222.

(@) Inthe case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state
of affairs of the Group asat March 31, 2013.

Inthe case of the Consolidated Statement of Profit and L oss,
of theloss of the Group for the year ended on that date, and

()

In the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the
cash flows of the Group for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

(©

Wedid not audit thefinancial statements of Apple Asset Management
Limited, which reflect total assets of ¥ 59,11,245 (excluding debit
balance of ¥ 106,088,755 in the Profit and L oss Statement) as at
March 31, 2013 and total Revenue of 11,600 for the year ended
on that date. These financial statements have been audited by other
auditor, whose report has been furnished to us, and in our opinion, so
far asit relates to the amounts included in respect of the subsidiary,
is based solely on the report of the other auditor.

For Mahendra Kumbhat and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.105770W

Amar Chand Bagrecha
Partner
Member ship No.56605

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2013
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ASAT 31T MARCH 2013

®
Particulars Note Asat Asat
31¢ March 2013 31% March 2012
EQUITYANDLIABILITIES
Shareholders funds
(8 Sharecapital 2 556,701,477 556,701,477
(b) Reservesand surplus 3 (403,054,351) (402,096,862)
153,647,126 154,604,615
Non-current liabilities
(@) Long-termprovisions 4 222,236,177 214,444,123
222,236,177 214,444,123
Current liabilities
(@) Trade payables 5 37,006 (23,281)
(b) Other current liabilities 6 1,432,803 8,955,274
(c) Short-term provisions 7 9,097,218 7,353,467
10,567,027 16,285,460
TOTAL 386,450,331 385,334,198
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets 8
(i) Tangible assets 61,451,524 62,527,481
(b) Non-current investments 9 106,821,025 106,821,025
168,272,549 169,348,506
Current assets
(& Inventories 10 24,675,000 24,675,000
(b) Cash and bank balances 1 184,878,086 182,449,861
(c) Other current assets 12 8,624,696 8,860,831
218,177,782 215,985,692
TOTAL 386,450,331 385,334,198
Summary of significant accounting policies 1
Notes to the financial statements 18
In the opinion of the Board, the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are
approximately of the value stated, if realized in the ordinary course
of business. The provision for all known liabilities is adeguate and not
in excess of the amount reasonably necessary.
As per our attached Report of even date
For Mahendra Kumbhat & Associates On behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.105770W
Amar Chand Bagrecha Mahesh K. Rachh Mahesh Menon
Partner Managing Director Director
Member ship No.56605
Place: Mumbai Mahendra S. Shah P. B. Deshpande

Dated: May 30, 2013

Company Secretary




APPLE FINANCE LIMITED
L __________________________________________________________________________________|

CONSOL IDATED PROFIT AND LOSSSTATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2013

®
Particulars Note Year ending Year ending
31¢ March 2013 31 March 2012
I. Revenuefrom operations 13 13,000 12,500
1. Otherincome 14 15,094,589 16,962,709
Il. Total revenue 15,107,589 16,975,209
V. Expenses:
Employee benefits expense 15 3,931,612 3,837,153
Depreciation and amortization expense 8 1,979,157 2,082,307
Other expenses 16 9,660,615 9,831,419
Total expenses 15,571,334 15,750,879
V. Profit/(Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (463,794) 1,224,330
V1. Exceptional item - Excess provision for Fringe Benefit Tax Written Back - 2,353
VII. Profit/(Loss) before extraordinary items and tax (463,794) 1,221,977
VI1I1.Extraordinary Items- Prior Period Income - -
Extraordinary Items- Prior Period Expenses 16 489,351 (230,359)
IX. Profit/(Loss) beforetax (953,145) 1,452,336
X Tax expense:
(1) Current tax - Wealth Tax 4,343 6,014
(2) Deferred tax - -
X1 Profit/(Loss) for the period from continuing operations (957,488) 1,446,322
X1l Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operations - -
X111 Tax expense of discontinuing operations - -
XIV Profit/(L oss) from discontinuing oper ations (after tax) - -
XV Profit/(L oss) for the period (957,488) 1,446,322
XVI Earnings/(Loss) per equity share 17
(1) Basic (0.02) 0.03
(2) Diluted (0.02) 0.03
Summary of significant accounting policies 1
Notesto thefinancial statements 18
In the opinion of the Board, the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are
approximately of the value stated, if realized in the ordinary course
of business. The provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not
in excess of the amount reasonably necessary.
As per our attached Report of even date
For Mahendra Kumbhat & Associates On behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.105770W
Amar Chand Bagrecha Mahesh K. Rachh Mahesh Menon
Partner Managing Director Director
Member ship No.56605
Place: Mumbai Mahendra S. Shah P. B. Deshpande
Dated: May 30, 2013 Director Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2013

For theyear ended For theyear ended
PARTICULARS 31% March 2013 31% March 2012
g g 04 g
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax and extraordinary items (463,794) 1,224,330
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 1,979,157 2,082,307
Profit/(Loss) on Sale of Assets and Investments - (188,408)
Investment Income - Dividend/Interest (15,094,589) (16,429,301)
_ (13,115432) — (14,535,402)
Operating profit before working capital changes (13,579,226) (13,311,072)
Adjustments for:
Trade payables and other short term liabilities 2,073,621 1,082,415
Loans and Advances (net) 775,179 (65,225)
2,848,800 1,017,190
Cash generated from operations (10,730,426) (12,293,882)
Interest paid - -
Direct taxes paid (-)/Refund of Income Tax (+) (543,387) 6,673,793
(543,387) 6,673,793
Cash flow before extraordinary items (11,273,813) (5,620,089)
Extraordinary items (489,351) 230,359
Net cash from operating activities A (11,763,164) (5,389,730)
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase and sale of fixed assets including
advances given for work-in-progress (903,200) (27,750)
Investment redemption/sold - 20,774,189
Interest received 14,407,770 15,239,173
Dividend received 686,819 1,190,128
Net cash used in investing activities ..B 14,191,389 37,175,740
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings (net) - -
Net cash used in financing activities ..C - -
Net I ncrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 2,428,225 31,786,010
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year
(opening balance) 182,449,861 150,663,851
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year
(closing balance) 184,878,086 182,449,861

Notes:

1. Cash and cash equivalents include cash and cheques in hand and balances with scheduled banks.
2. Previousyear’s figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary.

As per our attached Report of even date

For Mahendra Kumbhat & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.105770W

Amar Chand Bagrecha
Partner
Member ship No.56605

Place: Mumbai
Dated: May 30, 2013

On behalf of the Board

Mahesh K. Rachh
Managing Director

Mahendra S. Shah
Director

Mahesh Menon
Director

P. B. Deshpande
Company Secretary
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APPLE FINANCE LIMITED

NOTE "1" SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES ON CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

1. Accounting Convention and Concepts 6.

The Company follows the Historical Cost Convention and the
Mercantile System of Accounting where the income and
expenditure are recognised on accrual basis.

2. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are valued at cost |less depreciation. Cost includes
all expensesincurred for acquisition of assets.

3. Depreciation

The Company provides depreciation on straight-line method on
apro rata basis on completed month basis at the rate specified
in Schedule X1V to the CompaniesAct, 1956.

4. lnvestments

All investments are stated at cost of acquisition. Theinvestments
sold during the year are accounted on first-in-first-out basis and
investments purchased and sold during the year are shown on
net basis. Provision is made for diminution in the value of
investments, wherever required.

5. Valuation of Socks

Stock of shares and securities valued at cost or fair value,
whichever isless.

Retirement Benefits

The provision for retirement benefits such as provident fund,
gratuity and superannuation is made for employeesfrom the date
of their respective appointment.

(i) Company’scontribution to the Provident Fund, Pension Fund,
Superannuation Fund and other fund is charged to the Profit
and LossAccount.

(i) Theamount of Gratuity liability asascertained on the basis of
acturial valuation by Life Insurance Corporation of Indiais
paid/provided and charged to the Profit and LossAccount.

(iif) Provisionismadetowardsliability for |eave encashment.
Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there
is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the Company estimatesthe recoverable amount
of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset isless than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its
recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment
loss and is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account. If at the
Balance Sheet date thereisan indication that previously assessed
impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is
reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount
subject to a maximum of depreciated historical cost.

®



a

NOTE " 2" TO CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ASAT 31 MARCH, 2013

SHARE CAPITAL Par Value Balance Outstanding I ssued/(Reductions) Balance Outstanding
per share asat 31st March, 2012 during the year asat 31st March, 2013
® No. of Shares Value | No. of Shares Value | No. of Shares Value
®) ®) ®)
Equity Share Capital
Authorized: 10 75,000,000 | 750,000,000 - 75,000,000 750,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up 10 55,673,122 | 556,731,220 - 55,673,122 556,731,220
Less: Callsin arrears by others - 29,743 - - 29,743
10 55,673,122 | 556,701,477 - 55,673,122 556,701,477
Preference Share Capital
Authorized: 100 7,500,000 | 750,000,000 - 7,500,000 750,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up 100 - - - - -
Par Value No. of Value Holding No. of Value Holding
per share Shares ® (%) Shares ® (%)
® 31/03/2012 | 31/03/2012 31/03/2012 | 31/03/2013| 31/03/2013 31/03/2013
Shar eheld by Holding Company
Not Applicable
Holding mor ethan 5%
AdamicaManagement Consultancy Ltd. | 10 6,023,180 60,231,800 10.829 5,528,180 55,281,800 9.93%
Overseer Investments Pvt. Ltd. 10 4,134,300 41,343,000 7439 4,134,300 41,343,000 743%
Chivas Trading Pvt. Ltd. 10 3,168,216 31,682,160 569% 3168216 31,682,160 5.69%
Apple Finance EmployeesWelfare Trust | 10 3,316,680 33,166,800 596% 3,316,680 33,166,800 5.96%
Note: The Company has not allotted any shares during the last five years, preceding March 31, 2013.
Q)
NOTE " 3" TO CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ASAT 315" MARCH 2013
RESERVESAND SURPLUS Balance ason Additions/ Balance ason
31 March 2012 Deductions/ 31 March 2013
Appropriations
Capital Redemption Reserve 20,000,000 - 20,000,000
Debenture Redemption Reserve 100,000,000 - 100,000,000
General Reserve 400,000,000 - 400,000,000
Surplus/(Deficit) at the beginning of the year (1,433,056,466) - -
Add: Profit/(Loss) after tax for the year - (957,488) -
Less: Transfer to General Reserve - - -
Less: Proposed Dividend including Dividend Distribution Tax - - -
Surplug/(Deficit) at the end of the year - - (1,434,013,955)
Capital Reserve 6,933,420 - 6,933,420
Capital Resereve on Settlement of Loans 427,026,184 - 427,026,184
Reserve Fund under Section 45IC(1) of the
Reserve Bank of IndiaAct,1934 77,000,000 - 77,000,000
Total (402,096,862) (957,488) (403,054,351)
)
NOTE " 4" TO CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ASAT 315" MARCH 2013
LONG-TERM PROVISIONS Balance as at Additions Utilizations | Reversals Balance as at
31¢ March 2012 31 March 2013
Provisions for Non-Performing Assets 214,444,123 - (7,792,054) - 222,236,177
Grand Total 214,444,123 - (7,792,054) - 222,236,177

(30)
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NOTE "5" TO CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ASAT 31T MARCH 2013

®

TRADE PAYABLES

Asat 31% March 2013

Asat 31% March 2012

NOTE " 6" TO CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ASAT 315" MARCH 2013

Others 37,006 (23,281)
Grand Total 37,006 (23,281)
o)

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Asat 31% March 2013

Asat 31% March 2012

Other Payable 1,223,773 8,931,304

Duties and Taxes Payable 209,030 23,970

Grand Total 1,432,803 8,955,274

®)
NOTE " 7" TO CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ASAT 31ST MARCH 2013
SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS Balance as at Additions | Utilizations| Reversals Balance as at
31% March 2012 31* March 2013

Provision for employee benefits 541,161 86,341 66,609 - 560,893

Provision for expenses 6,812,306 8,536,325 6,812,306 - 8,536,325

Grand Total 7,353,467 8,622,666 6,878,915 - 9,097,218

®)

NOTE "8" TO CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ASAT 315" MARCH 2013

FIXEDASSETS Gross | Additions| Deletions | Gross Block | Depreciation |Depreciation| Depreciation|Depreciation [|mpair ment Net Block
Block asat up to for the on up to losses/ asat

asat 1% April 31* March | 31% March year | deductions| 31% March| reversals| 31% March

2012 2013 2012 2013 2013

Tangible Assets

Land

- Freehold 955,066 - - 955,066 - - - - - 955,066

Buildings

- Owned 82,420,442 | 903,200 -| 83,323,642 | 25,820,023 | 1,346,656 -| 27,166,679 - | 56,156,963

Plant and Equipment

- Owned

Office Equipment 4,047,326 - -| 4,047,326| 3,334,976 96,780 -| 3,431,756 - 615,570

Computers 18,042,048 - -| 18,042,048 | 17,945,208 46,753 -| 17,991,961 - 50,087

Electrical Fittings 1,390,185 - -| 1,390,185 769,293 66,036 - 835,329 - 554,856

Furniture & Fixtures 16,418,561 - -| 16,418,561 | 14,597,157 173,980 -| 14,771,137 - | 1,647,424

Vehicles 2,620,548 - -| 2,620,548 900,038 248,952 -| 1,148,990 -| 1,471,558

Total 125,894,176 | 903,200 - 126,797,376 | 63,366,695 | 1,979,157 -| 65,345,852 - | 61,451,524

Previous Year 125,866,426 | 27,750 - 125,894,176 | 61,284,388 | 2,082,307 -| 63,366,695 - | 62,527,481

®
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NOTE"9" TO CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ASAT 315 MARCH 2013

NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

No.of Face As at 31 As at 31
Securities Value March 2013 March 2012
®) ) )
Trade Investments
(Fully paid unless otherwise stated)
Quoted Investments - Equity Shares (At cost)
AmbikaCotton MillsLimited 180,233 10 8,651,200 8,651,200
Anjani SolventsIndiaLimited 74,853 10 748,530 748,530
Anod Plasma Spray Limited 75,000 10 750,000 750,000
CiplaLimited 36,510 2 652,302 652,302
Indian Lead Limited 332,066 10 12,331,200 12,331,200
Inland PrintersLimited 33,300 10 1,998,000 1,998,000
Pittie Cements & IndustriesLimited 118,126 10 12,993,860 12,993,860
Sagar Tourist Resorts Limited 21,342 10 213,420 213,420
SesaGoalimited 5,800 1 51,023 51,023
Shri RenugaTextilesLimited 40,000 10 6,000,000 6,000,000
Vital FoodsLimited 93,900 10 1,032,900 1,032,900
Total (A) 45,422 435 45422 435
Unquoted Investments - Equity Shares (At cost)
Aldrich PharmaceuticalsLimited 210,000 10 7,035,000 7,035,000
Armour PharmaceuticalsLimited 593,750 10 8,386,690 8,386,690
Deluxe FabricsLimited 250,000 10 4,780,421 4,780,421
Indo Deutsche Metallo Chimique Ltd. 145,000 10 24,539,919 24,539,919
SpectrumAlkyd & ResinsLimited 133,333 10 1,500,000 1,500,000
Union Motor ServicesLimited 366,667 10 8,806,560 8,806,560
VijayaHomeLoans Limited 50,000 10 500,000 500,000
Total (B) 55,548,590 55,548,590
Unquoted Investments - Debentures (At cost)
18% Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures of Century Wood Limited 40000 100 5,850,000 5,850,000
Total (C) 5,850,000 5,850,000
Total (A) + (B) + (C) 106,821,025 106,821,025
Cost Market Value
) ®
Aggregate Value of Quoted I nvestment
Equity Shares 45,422,435 | 48,489,037***
(Previous Year) (45,422,435) (38,812,115)
Aggregate Value of Unquoted Investment
Equity Shares 55,548,590 -
(PreviousYear) (55,548,590) -
Total 100,971,025 -
(Previous Year) (100,971,025) -

*** Market value of quoted investments includes only market value of Cipla Limited and Ambika Cotton Mills Limited, since other
quoted shares' market value is not available.
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Q)
NOTE " 10" TO CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ASAT 31ST MARCH 2013
INVENTORIES (Valued at cost or market As on 31% March 2013 As on 31% March 2012
value whichever is less) Inventory Goods-in- Final Inventory | Goods-in- Final
Transit Value Transit Value
Unquoted Equity Shares
1,41,000 Equity Shares of 310 each of
Indo Deutsche Metallo Chimique Limited 24,675,000 - | 24,675,000 | 24,675,000 -| 24,675,000
Total 24,675,000 - | 24,675,000 | 24,675,000 -| 24,675,000
Note: Market value of stock-in-trade is not available and, therefore, it is valued at cost.
Q)
NOTE " 11" TO CONSOL IDATED BALANCE SHEET ASAT 315" MARCH 2013
CASH AND BANK BALANCES Asat 31¢ March 2013 | Asat 31 March 2012
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash on hand 35,397 35,163
Balance with Banks 41,562 588,071
Bank Deposits (less than 3 months maturity)* 147,738,436 21,770,000
147,815,395 22,393,233
OTHERS
Bank Deposits (more than 3 months but less than 12 months maturity) 20,894,586 39,344,586
Bank Deposits (more than 12 months maturity)** 16,168,105 120,712,042
37,062,691 160,056,628
Total 184,878,086 182,449,861
*  Qut of which%12,73,39,172 isunder lien with Kotak MahindraBank Ltd.
**  (Previousyear 311,96,22,338)
Q)
NOTE " 12" TO CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ASAT 31ST MARCH 2013
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Ason 31% March 2013 Ason 31% March 2012
Secured, | Unsecured,| Doubtful Total | Secured, | Unsecured, | Doubtful Total
considered | considered considered | considered
good good good good
Interest accrued on Investment - 2,068,801 - 12,068,801 - 2,101,481 - 12,101,481
Security Deposits - 428,530 - | 428,530 - 428,530 - | 428,530
Prepaid Expenses - 497,778 -| 497,778 - 664,278 - | 664,278
Other Receivables - 2,599,000 - 12,599,000 -| 3,175,000 - 13,175,000
Advance Income Tax and TDS - 2,846,370 - 12,846,370 -| 2,307,326 - 12,307,326
Sales Tax paid against appeal - 184,217 - | 184,217 - 184,217 - | 184,217
Grand Total - 8,624,696 - 18,624,696 -| 8,860,831 - | 8,860,831
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)

NOTE " 13" TO CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSSSTATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 315" MARCH 2013
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS Year ending Year ending
31 March 2013 31t March 2012
Hire-Purchase Income 13,000 12,500
Total 13,000 12,500
Q)

NOTE " 14" TO CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSSSTATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 315" MARCH 2013

OTHER INCOME Year ending Year ending
31¢ March 2013 31% March 2012
Interest 14,340,077 13,774,454
(TDSX 14,41,591 Previous Year % 13,73,688)
Interest on Income Tax Refund 67,693 1,464,719
Dividend Income:
- Others 686,819 1,190,128
Short-Term Capital Gain on Sale of Mutual Fund Units - 188,408
Miscellaneous Income - 345,000
Total 15,094,589 16,962,709
®)
NOTE " 15" TO CONSOL IDATED PROFIT AND LOSSSTATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 315" MARCH 2013
EMPLOYEE BENEFITSEXPENSES Year ending Year ending
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
Salaries and wages 3,091,177 2,824,846
Contribution to Provident and other funds 534,467 747,510
Staff welfare expenses 305,968 264,797
Total 3,931,612 3,837,153
®)
NOTE " 16" TO CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSSSTATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 315" MARCH 2013
OTHER EXPENSES Year ending Year ending
31¢ March 2013 31% March 2012
Power and fuel 338,485 399,371
Repairs to machinery 37,417 -
Repairs to building 50,000 -
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 20,106 13,189
Insurance 21,037 20,698
Rates and taxes excluding taxes on income 119,985 32,632
Society Charges 2,035,993 1,721,595
Legal and Professional fees 704,796 1,302,186
Printing and Stationery 40,268 39,909
Telephone and Fax Expenses 176,876 214,693
Courier Expenses 7,291 12,624
Service Charges 573,528 525,865
Security Charges 426,092 469,829
Travelling Expenses 368,886 765,366
Conveyance 13,113 9,870
Motor Car Expenses 1,181,751 897,889
AGM Expenses 2,041,620 1,912,790
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®)
NOTE" 16" TO CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSSSTATEMENT FORTHE YEAR ENDING 315" MARCH 2013(Contd.)
OTHER EXPENSES Year ending Year ending
31 March 2013 31t March 2012
Registrar, Share and Debenture Expenses 870,150 824,862
Directors' Sitting Fees 12,000 12,000
Membership and Subscription 4,505 37,973
Bank Charges 150 -
Books and Periodicals 8,060 4,805
Miscellaneous Expenses 13,560 16,960
Payments to the Auditor
(a) asAuditor 406,743 406,743
(b) for Tax Audit 112,360 112,360
(c) for Limited Review Audit 75,843 77,210
9,660,615 9,831,419
Prior period items (in case of [0ss)
Rates and taxes excluding taxes on income 489,351 (254,173)
Motor Car Expenses - 23,814
489,351 (230,359)
Total 10,149,966 9,601,060
Q)
NOTE" 17" TO CONSOL IDATED PROFIT AND LOSSSTATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 315" MARCH 2013
EARNING PER SHARE Year ending Year ending
31 March 2013 31% March 2012
(a) Net Profit after tax attributable to Equity Shareholders for Basic EPS (957,488) 1,446,322
Add/Less: Adjustment relating to potential equity shares - -
(957,488) 1,446,322
(b) Weighted average No. of equity shares outstanding during the year
For Basic Earning Per Share 55,673,122 55,673,122
For Diluted Earning Per Share 55,673,122 55,673,122
(c) Basic Earning Per Share (0.02) 0.03
Diluted Earning Per Share (0.02) 0.03
Face Value Per Equity Share 10 10
(d) Reconciliation between No. of shares used for calculating basic and
diluted earning per share
Particulars
No. of shares used for calculating basic earning per share 55,673,122 55,673,122
Add: Potential equity shares - -
No. of sharesused for calculating diluted earning per share 55,673,122 55,673,122
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NOTE “18" - NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS
Notes forming part of the Accounts for the year ended 31¢ March 2013

Asat Asat
31¢ March 2013 31¢ March 2012
4 4
(1) Asthebusinesswas unviable, the Company surrendered its Certificate of Registration of
Non-Banking Financial Institution to Reserve Bank of India. Reserve Bank of India has
cancelled the said Certificate of Registration vide their letter No. DNBS. MRO.N0.4716
& 4869/ 02.01.60.Apple/ 2003-04 dated January 13, 2004 and January 18, 2004. In view
of this, in terms of Section 45-1A of the RBI Act, 1934, now the Company is not entitled
to carry on the business of Non-Banking Financial Institution. However, the Company
can in future carry on the business of Non-Banking Financial Institution after taking
necessary approval from Reserve Bank of India. The Company does have businessincome
from Interest, etc. and also have Stock-in-Trade for business and hence, accounts have
been prepared on the * Going Concern Basis' and Historical Cost Method.
(2) Contingent Liabilitiesin respect of:
(@) Claimsagainst the Company not acknowledge as debts 100,000,000 100,000,000
(3) TheCompany has been advised that it does not have taxableincome under the Income-tax
Act, 1961 for the current financial year and accordingly, no provision for Income Tax has
been madein the Profit and LossAccount of the Company. Further, Wealth Tax is accounted
intheyear inwhichitispaid and hence, no provision for Wealth Tax has been madein the
Profit and Loss Account of the Company.
(4) (8 Allinvestmentsareinthe name of the Company, except those under transfer/delivery.
(b) All theinvestmentsare held by the Company aslong-term investments, except shown
as Stock-in-Trade.
(5) Prior period expesnes details.
OTHER EXPENSES Year ending Year ending
31¢ March 2013 31 March 2012
4 4
Rates and taxes excluding taxes on income 489,351 (254,173)
Motor Car Expenses - 23,814
Total 489,351 (230,359)
(6) Remuneration to Directors:
(@) Remuneration paid to the Managing Director:
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
4 4
Salaries and Contribution to the Provident and other funds 1,899,342 1,588,634
Perquisites® 39,600 39,600
Total 1,938,942 1,628,234

* Value of perquisitesis determined as per the Income-tax Rules, 1962.

(b) Since no commission is paid/payable to any Director, the computation of profits
under Section 349 of the Companies Act, 1956 has not been made.

(7) Confirmation of balances from parties have not been received. The balances, therefore,
are as per the books of account of the Company.

(8) There are no separate reportable segments.

(9) Demat Account holding statement as on 31.3.2013 includes 500 equity shares of Numeric
Power Systems Limited, which were already sold by the Company, however, the same
have not been transferred by the transferee in his own name. Consequently, dividends
received on said shares have been considered as current liability.

(36)
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(10) Disclosuresasrequired by the Accounting Standard 18 “ Related Party Disclosures” are given below:

Name of related party and nature of relationship For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2013 31% March 2012
4 4
(i) Directors/Key Management Personnel : Remuneration
(@) Mr. Mahesh K. Rachh: Managing Director 1,938,942 1,628,234
(i) Directorsandtheir relatives - Professional Fees
(@) Mrs. AnitaMahesh Menon: Director’s spouse 120,000 103,500
i) Director Sitting fees
(@ Mr. Mahesh Menon: Director 6,000 6,000
(b) Mr. Mahendra Shah: Director 6,000 6,000

(11) Conseguent to the issuance of the Accounting Standard 22 “Accounting for Taxes on
Income” by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, which is mandatory, the
Company has had Deferred Tax Assets (net) of ¥19,42,30,222. In the opinion of the
Board of Directors, it is unlikely that the Company would be able to take advantage of
Deferred Tax Assetsin the near future and accordingly, Deferred Tax Asset has not been

considered.
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
3 3
Deferred Tax Asset:
(1) Provision for Non-Performing Assets and Diminution in the value of Investments 20,635,653 20,635,653
(2) Carry forward losses (including Unabsorbed Depreciation) 192,561,453 199,399,635
(3) Depreciation (18,966,883) (19,458,484)
Deferred Tax Asset (net) 194,230,222 200,576,804
(12) (a) Details of Stock of Shares and Securities:-
Unquoted
141,000 Equity Shares of 310 each of Indo Deutsche Metallo Chimique Limited 24,675,000 24,675,000
24,675,000 24,675,000
(b) Quantitative Details:-
(i)  Opening Stock
Quantity (Nos.) 141,000 141,000
Vaue (%) 24,675,000 24,675,000
(if)  Purchases/Received against Claims/Acquisition on Merger/Bonus
Quantity (Nos.) - -
Value ) - -
(iif) Sales/Reduction on Merger
Quantity (Nos.) - -
Value ) - -
(iv) Closing Stock
Quantity (Nos.) 141,000 141,000
Vaue (%) 24,675,000 24,675,000

(13) Asper theAccounting Standard 13, Stock-in-Trade (Shares) isrequired to be recognised
at cost or fair value whichever is less. However, the same has not been followed as fair
value of the shares are not available because those Company’s shares are not quoted in
the stock market. Hence, provision for the same has been made.

(14) Cash Flow is prepared as per Indirect Method.
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(15) ThePreviousYear’sfigures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary. Amount and other disclosures
for the preceding year areincluded asan integral part of the current year’ sfinancial statement and areto beread in relation to the amount
and other disclosurerelating to the current year.

Signaturesto Note“1” to“ 18"

As per our attached Report of even date

For Mahendra Kumbhat & Associates On behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.105770W

Amar Chand Bagrecha Mahesh K. Rachh Mahesh Menon
Partner Managing Director Director

Member ship No.56605

Place: Mumbai Mahendra S. Shah P. B. Deshpande
Dated: May 30, 2013 Director Company Secretary
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APPLE FINANCE LIMITED

Registered Office: 8 Apegjay House, 130 Mumbai Samachar Marg, Mumbai 400 023
CONSENT FOR RECEIVING DOCUMENTSIN ELECTRONIC MODE

Dear Shareholder,
Green Initiative in Corporate Governance

TheMinistry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") hastaken a" Green Initiativein Corporate Governance'" by allowing paperless compliancesby
companiesthrough el ectronic mode. Your Company supportsthisenvironment friendly initiative of the Government of Indiaand proposesto
send Noticesfor General Meetings/Annual Reports/other shareholder communication through el ectronic modeto the registered email ad-
dresses of shareholders.

Please note that asasharehol der of the Company, you will be entitled to receive physical copiesof al noticesand documentsfree of cost upon
specific request made to the Company.

Shareholders, who wish to receive theAnnual Report and other documentsin the electronic mode, are requested to fill the form below and
send the same to our Registrar and Transfer Agents viz., Sharepro Services (India) Pvt. Ltd. and also register their email ID with their
Depository Participants (DP) if the shares are held in Demat mode.

Thankingyou,
Yourstruly,

P. B. Deshpande
Company Secretary

Date: May 30, 2013

APPLE FINANCE LIMITED
Registered Office: 8 Apegjay House, 130 Mumbai Samachar Marg, Mumbai 400 023
CONSENT FOR RECEIVING DOCUMENTSIN ELECTRONIC MODE
(Pursuant to Circular N0.17/2011 dated 21.04.2011 and No.18/2011
dated 29.04.2011 issued by the Ministry of CorporateAffairs)
To

Sharepro Services(India) Private Limited
Unit: AppleFinance Limited

13AB, SamhitaWarehousing Complex, Floor 2
Sakinaka Telephone Exchange Lane

Off Andheri-KurlaRoad, Sakinaka

Andheri (East)

Mumbai 400 072

Dear Sirs,

With referenceto your circular dated May 30, 2013, I/we shareholder(s) of Apple Finance Limited, agreeto receivedl noticesand documents
including theAnnual Report, Noticesfor General Meetingsand other shareholder communication in el ectronic mode.

I/werequest you to kindly register my/our email ID in the Company'srecords for sending such communication through email.
FOlIONO./DPID & ClIeNt ID NO. & oeuiie et et et et e et et e e e e en e e
Name of the Shareholder PPN
No. of Shares PP TPPRRPIN

Email ID for receipt of documents
in electronic mode e e e e e e e e e

Signature
(Sole/First Shareholder)
Date:






q APPLE FINANCE LIMITED
Registered Office: 8 Apegjay House, 130 Mumbai Samachar Marg, Mumbai 400 023.
ATTENDANCE SLIP
27™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING - SEPTEMBER 25, 2013, 3.30 P.M.

Regd. FOlIONO.......ccoeiriieiicce DPId .o ClientId ....ccoooeveereeeecees
| certify that | am a registered shareholder / proxy for the registered shareholder of the Company.

| hereby record my presence at the 27" Annual General Mesti ng of the Company at M. C. GhiaHall, Bhogilal Hargovindas
Building, Floor 4, 18/20 Kaikhushru Dubash Marg, Mumbai 400 001 on Wednesday, September 25, 2013.

Member’s/Proxy’s namein BLOCK LETTERS Member’s/Proxy’s Signature

Note: Please fill out this attendance slip and hand it over at the ENTRANCE OF THE HALL
————————————————— TearHer¢g— — — — — — — — — ———— — — — —

APPLE FINANCE LIMITED
Registered Office: 8 Apegjay House, 130 Mumbai Samachar Marg, Mumbai 400 023.
PROXY

7T PP of
.............................................................................................................................................................. in the district of
......................................................... being a member /members of the above Company hereby appoint
......................................................................................................................... Of ceoovveiviiiiieeeieeeee. in the district of
............................................................... or failing him .........cccccvvvvvnncne in the district of ..o, 8

my / our Proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the 27" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held
at 3.30 p.m. on Wednesday, September 25, 2013 and at every adjournment thereof.

Signed this.......... day Of ..o 2013. AffixT 1/-
Revenue
Signature Stamp
Regd. FOlio NO......ccoceriririii DPId oo, Client Id ...cooveeiieeeeeee,
Notes:

1. Proxy need not be a member.

2. Thisforminorder to be effective, should be duly stamped, completed and signed and must be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the meeting.
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FORM *B’

Format of covering letter of the Annual Audit Report to be filed with BSE Limited

=

1. | Name of the Company Apple Finance Limited N
2. | Annual financial statements for the March 31, 2013
year ended

3. | Type of Audit qualification Subject to: (a) Point No.1 of Note
19’ regarding ‘going concern’
assumption of the Company. (b)
Point No.11 of Note ‘19’ regarding
non-consideration of Deferred Tax
Assets (Net) amounting to
Rs.194,230,222.

4. | Frequency of qualification (@) The qualification is appearing

since the financial
March 31, 2004.

(b) The qualification is appearing
since the financial year ended
March 31, 2002.

vear ended

Draw attention to relevant notes in
the annual financial statements and
management response to the

qualification in the directors’ report.

(a) [Annual Report Page No.22]
The Company can in future carry
on the business of Non-Banking
Financial Institution after taking
necessary approval from Reserve
Bank of India.

(b) [Annual Report Page No.23]

In the opinion of the Board of
Directors, it is unlikely that the
Company would be able to take
advantage of Deferred Tax Assets
in the near future and accordingly,
Deferred Tax Asset has not been
considered.

Additional comments from the
Board/ Audit Committee Chair.

None

.|

To be signed by-
e CEO/Managing Director
e CFO
* Auditor of the company
e Audit Committee Chairman

b

ahesh K. Rachh
Managing Director




